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B. Seauence of Events:

b6 , i
hicC I, Saturday/Sunday - August 20-21, 1955: Emmeit Till, Mose Wright and
[ Jieparted Chicago, linois via train and arrived in Mississippi. Till and were

scheduled to return to Chicago two weeks later. Till’s mother, Mamie Till-Mobley, had given Till
his deceased father’s ring prior to his leaving Chicago..*% *! %

2, Wednesday - August 24, 1955: '

SUN MOON
Begin Civil <1 5:03 am. © | Moonset on the %:53 pam.
Twilight Preceding Day
Sunrise 5:2% 2.m, Moonrise 12:17 p.m,
Sunset 6:37 p.m, Moanset 10:34 p.m.
End Civil Twilight | 7:03 p.m. Moonrise on the b:il pam,
Following Day _
Weather
| High Temperatre | 92 degrees
Low Tempsrature 71 degrees
Precipitation None

Meteorologicat, Light and Weather Data

Adl moon and light data used thraughout this report was obtained from the United States Naval Observatory,

Asmonomical Applications Department. Weather data used throughout this report was obtained from the Greenwood
Commonwaalth newspaper,

a,

ugust 24, 1955 - 8:00 p.m. - i Till, his cousins, and

members of the Wright family traveled-to Money, Mississippi and visited Bryant’s Grocery & Meat

Market, With Till were | '

' ' Maurice Wright (deceased) and Curtis Jone; (deceased). Also at the store that evening
wasl Iand thef ] Upon artiving several black

persons were already present at the store on the front porch, playing checkers. Till entered the store

¥ Death of tnnocence, The Story of The Hate Crime That Changed America, Maime Tiil-Mobley and Christophier
enson, 2003 ’ .

pcge=

) Misc ofs

, Moon and Light Data, Agpcil 14, ZGOSL _J

7

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE .
This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBL, Tt is the property of the Fidt and 1s 10aned 1o your agency; it and its
contenis are not 1o be distributed outside your agency.




LAaW ENFURUEMENT SENSETIVDE

alone, followed shortly thereafter by his cousin, who entered the store and came out

with Till. Shortly after Tilland[ Jexited the stor¢| __|exited as

well, Upon

exit, Till whistled.

¢ Carolyn Bryant-Denham: During thf;' trial of _J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant for the
murder of Emmett Till, Bryant-Donham testified on behalf of the defénse, out of the
presence of the jury. Bryant-Donham stated that on the evening of August 24, 1955
she was tending_ the store alone. Her sister-in-lat’\;r, Juanité Milam, was in the living

quarters at the rear of the store, taking care of the Milam and Bryant children. At

" about 8:00 p.m., a "nigger man came in the store and he stopped there at the candy

case." Bryant-Donharn waited on the customer, but did not recall at the time of her

testimony what he had purchased. Bryant-Donham placed the item oh the candy case

~ and held her right hand out for the money. Instead of taking the money from her hand,

the customer “caught my hand”, holding her hand by grasping all the f'mg_ers in the_
paim of his hand with a strong grip. When he grabbed her hand he asked "How abc.)ut
a date, baby?" Bryant-Donham "jetked" her hand loose and umed to _go_’to the back
of the store. The customer followed her down the counter to the cash reg‘ister,‘
“caught" her by the waist with hns hands and said, "What's the matter, :baby? Can't
you toke it?" Bryani-Donham, 'with difficulty, freed herself from his grasp. He then
stated, ”Yﬁu needn't be afraid of me" and useq language Bryant—Donhan{ did not use,
including “one unprintable wo}d”, and "with white women before.” Biyant-Donham
‘stated this incident left her “just scared to death,” About that time “this lother nigger
came in the store and got him by thg: amm”, telling the customer "come on and let's go”.

The customer left the store unwillingly, stating as hie went out "Good-by?. Upon the .
40
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customer’s leaving Bryant-Donham “called out” to Juanita Milam "to wateh me” and
Bryant—Dorﬂxaiﬁ ran out the door to Juanita Milam's car to retrieve her [Bryant-
Donham’s) pistol, “When Bryant-Donham exited the front of the store, she saw. the
customer again, "standing by one of the posts on the front porch"” and "He whistled
and tlien came out in the road." Bryant-Donham retrieved the pistol from| under the
driver’s seat, turned around and observed the cuﬁoﬁwr getting in a car, .Iuanita

~ Milam had. been at the store so that Bryant-Donham would not be alone while her
husband, Roy Brya{n, was in Brownsville, Texas ta.king aload of shrin;p there from

New Orleans, Louisiana.* .

described that when she “called

out” toI ) Jthat “...I had screamed for [~ and screamed for LY

“...as soon as he touched me I started screaming for .." and the statements
bé made to her by the customer on this day had left her with the impression he would be
b7¢ '

back at a later time. Additionally, stated that during the incident she

]

had reached for a pistol which was normally kept underneath the store counter, but

the weapon was not there and she retrieved the pistol from under the driver’s seat of

vehicle, whichf - had been driving, ”'“[::' .

I____talso stated she was not the person who initially told Roy Bryant what had

happened in the store saying, “...I didn’t say anythiﬂg and one of the réasons L1

didn't say, ever say anything more about it, was because [ was afraid that, what { was

worried about was hc’s gonna go find and beat him up.” And *...Itold what

 Appendix A - Transcrtpt State of Mississippi vs. J.W. Mllam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchle
. t 25819277
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had happened, I asked her not to tell 3.W., because I didn’t intend 1o teil Roy, because

I was afraid of what they would do.” 3%

Additionally, on this night

ome, >

treca!led steeping at

. Recently

stated she was not.at the store when this

incident oceurred saying “I thought [ was in Greenville.”

not have been babysittin for her.,.” and that when Roy went out of town did

stated she “...would

not stay with|

[sayiug “ ..I'm sure | didn't, no.”- and

speculated that tmay have made the story ap stating *,..the only way

1 can figure it is that she did not want to take care of the store. She thought this wild

story would make Roy take care of the store instead of leavin’ her with the kids and

the store. That is ] Jpoint of view.” “...the only thing to me that would upset

her would be if she wanted Roy to stay at the store more...” A review of Juaniia

Milam’s trial testimony reveals she did not make any statements, nor was she

questioned abow, the incident at the store or her presence at Bryant’s Grocery &

Meat Market on the day Till whistled at Carolyn Bryant-Donhar, %'

Market prior to Wednesday, August 24, 1955. On that day, Till,

o Istaged that Till had not been in B}yant‘s Grocery & Meat

]

and others went to the store, Till went

into the store alone, or as{:i was leaving, with entering the store

- Appendix A - ’I‘ranscript + State of Mississippl vs. LW, M:Eam and Roy Bryani, Second District of Tal[ahamhic Mise o/ 5

Count

senth J Septe .

W, Milam, 277 023}
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as Till finished his purchase, “...Maurice told me to go in behind him and make sure
he didn't say anything that he shouldn’t have, but 1 don’t know if he said anything
before I got there, 1 don’t know. But while T was in there, he didn’t. He paid for his

items and we left together, we walked out caimly, 1 didn’t think anything was wrong

at the time...”] . did not grab Till and puli him out of the store.

[y

was not yelling or screaming when they left and everyihiﬁg appeared | .

normal. Shortly after Till and exited the store| | nre
exited-as well. When :léxited, Till whistled. Everyone knew Till's
whistling was trouble so they ran to the car and left town, %% |
. | |advised that on a Wednesday evening:

( I |Maurice Wright, Till and approximately three cI)ther family members
went into Mo'uey, Mississippi to Bryant's Gr.ocery & Meat Market, Dvent into

' ' the store just prior to ’fili, and]::jexited the store as Till was entering.- , EE:C
observed Till exiting the stére with they didn’t appear rushed and
nothing was unusual about their exit. . exiting éhértly
thereafter and Till whistled., Everyone knew Till's whi'stling was trouble s;> they ran
for their car and left Money, Miss@ésippi and went home to Mose Wrigﬁt’s
* house, 5% 65,68 ‘

.| . | - advised that on a Wednesday Till, ggc

[ | | Maurice Wright and

Misc 0/S

43

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

This document contains neither recamendations not conclusions of the FBL. 1t s the property of the FBI znd is loaned 1o your agensy: it and its

contents are nol to be distributed outside your agency.




b6
bh7C

bo
b7C

b2

b1C
b7D

b2

b7C
k7D

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

: Iwent to Money, Mississippi and visited Bryant's Grocery & Meat Market,

When the group arrived at Bryant's Grocery & Meat Market, there were about seven

other black people already in front of the store. Prior to Till going into the store,

several of the group dared Till to say something to the white woman in the store

because Till had shown them a photograph of a white woman in his wallet (the kind

of photograph that comes in a new wallet),
store heading toward her car and Till whistled.

at a bad move by the checker player.

61,68

and was preseni when Till whistled,

e Confidential Source

A confidential source, hereinafier referred to as

came out of the

believes Till was whistling

. | |stated he was at the store on the day that Till whistled at

advised thaDwas already present at Bryant’s Grocery & Meat Market when Till

armived with his cousins.

gun from

didn't hear|

accéstinq

occurring but no other details about it

observed Till entering the store, purchasing bubble
!and exiting the store with| [without ~inc:i::l::m.
[relling ot screaming a.nd did not obs;rve Till

in any way. Following Till’s exit recalled a whistle

observed Till, Wright and othets

getting into a vehicle and the vehicle leaving. When the incident occurred, the sun

had set and it was dark outside,

44

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE .
This document ¢ontains aeither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. 1t is the property of the FBI and is loared to your agency; itand its
cONLEnts are not to be distributed outside your ageacy.

Misc O/3

L TR




b2
bé
b7C
bTh

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

b2

b6 * Note: Till's surviving relatives
b7C
b7D do not recall being present at the store during this incident.

® Curtis Jones (deceased): Jones and his cousins snuck out of church to go to

Bryant's Meat Market and Grocery on this day and Jones was present at the store

during the whistliné incident. Jones recalled Till having a picture of a white girl in

his wallet. Additionally, someone challenged Tili about saying something to the,

white woman in the store prior to Till entering the store, ™2

* Note: I

b6

stated Jones ?vas not

b7C present at the store when the above noted incident oceurred.

Additionall}',:’]dvised Jones recanted his statements prior to his

death and apologized to Mamie Till-Mobley. 7

Misc o/s
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3. Saturday - August 27, 1955:
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SUN MOON

Begin Civil'Twilight | 5:05 am, Moonrise on the 2:02 pm,

. Preceding Day
Sunrise 5:31 am. Moonset 12:08 am.
Sunget - 633 pan. Moonrise 2:49 p.m.
End Civil Twilight 6:59 p.m. Moonset on the 1.00 a.m.

Following Day

Weather '
High Temperature 86 degrees
Low Temperature 71 degrees
Precipitation None

[ Meteorological, Light and Weather Data

August 27, 1955 ~ Davij

£ « Mone

i; Roy Brydnt; who had

been hauling a load of shrimp to Brownsville, Texas earlier in the week, retumed home to Money,

Mississippi.

‘|

"] In a recent interview, |

L

récalled that on

_the morning prior to Bryant’s arrest he was home. “Well I just remember that when

he came back, I didn’t tell him about it [the incident at the store when the black

ke
bIC

customer had accosted

.

and he waited a long time and he asked me

didn’t | have something [ wanted to tell him and I told him no...” ©...he was really

mad at me.”|

told him what had occurred.|

46
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detailed account of the black customer grabbing her hand, grabbing her wéist and

b6
how she had screamed E‘cni o come and help her, ™ b7C |

b. August 27, 1955 - Evening - Money, Mississippi:

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

Grocery & Meat Market, accompanied by his uncle and hié mother. When he entered

. ﬂ lived near Money, Mississippi, and had just returned to

Mississippi from a summer vacation trip to Chicago, Illinois. entered Bryant’s b7c

=14

the store, Roy Bryant and

werc inside. Roy Bryant asked

[_Jwherehe was on “that Thursday or Friday or something,..” “T didn’t

know what the devil he was talkin® about, so he, he acted like he wanted to do

something to me...” mother intervened. .. “and sﬁe said what's goin-’on? And
ah, he just starfed out‘ off and he say you all got to teach this boy how to say Isaid

yes sir, no sir.” At about the same time}
Roy Bryant mat:]couid_ not hear. The fiext day father went and told

their landowner about the.incident-. The landowner went to find out if Roy Bryant

had a problem with and leamned that Roy Bryant was in jail for kidnaping

Preacher Wright's grandson the night before. &

eﬁtered Bryant’s Groce}y & Meat Market and Roy Bryant was aggressiﬁqu quizzing

On the evening prior to Till’s kidnaping, a black boy !

the boy. Initially,

However, in another interview

lady and her little boy or her grandson or somebody was in the store and, [ don’t

“|said something to

did not récall exact details about the incident, ™

bé
biC

recalled “,..{ know that there was a

Misc Q78
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know, Roy said something to ‘em, and I remember telling him to leave'hixﬁ alone that,

you know, that wasn’t him”, meaning it wasn’t Emmett Till, m

. t Sometime between the incident at the store and Till's kidnaping, at

about dusk,[___Jwalked north, out of Money, Mississippi, on the road home to his

house on| | |bad been to a store in the town of Money and
had purchased some syrup (molasses) and snuff, which he was taking home. A truck

pulled up behind[Jand stopped. In the cab of the truck were Roy Bryant; LW.

Milam; and in the back of the truck was

J.W. Washington, a black man [possibly Johnny B. Washington]. Roy Bryant

instructed Washington to thme into the back of the pickup truck and

Washington did so.| |came out of the truck and told Bryant "that’s

not the nigger! That’s not the one.” Roy Bryant said “who?”[

responded “That’s the:' boy. That’s not him, but he was there with, with

him,” also said “Roﬂr, 1 keep telling ya, that's not the one.”
Roy Bryant then insﬁi:cted Washington to throw off the truck. Washington did
s0, breaking top, front teeth off, 73

¢ Confidential Source A confidential source, hereinafter referred to a'SI '

79
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¢. August 27, 1955 - Evening - Money, Mississippi

| Jalso recently advised that .. . JW.

_ alone at night there.

came to that back door and got Roy and they left and I was there all night by myself,
Alone. With two boys.” ** And *Well, after he teft with J.W.,  know the boys \;Jere
asleep. I had them on the bed there in that first room. Iknow I was just scared to
death, siftin” there, didn’t know what, and I think that ‘was the first time I'd ever been
s 81 . . ‘

d. August 27, 1955 - Night - Glendora, Mississippi;

+ Otha Johnson, Jr,, also kmown as Oso {deceased): John'#on, a black male,

related to his} -} .that on the night of August 27, 1§55 Johnson
was at J.W. Milam’s store in Glendora, Mississippi and a group IOf white men were.
sitting around drinking when they decided to take Till. Otha Johnson, Jr, drove J.W.
Milam and others throughout the night during the events surrounding Till's kidnaping

and murder, ¥

" l\a.fas. gambling at a place in Glendora, Mississippi when J.W.

Milam, Roy Bryant and Tallahatchie County Sheriff H.C, Strider came asking for

directions to Mose Wright's houss. indicated that he saw]——  Kpossibly

Too Tight (likely Leroy Collins) and Oudie B. Brown with

Milam, Bryant and Strider in Glendora, ¥

Misc O/S
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! » Note: hiso states in the interview he accompanied[ |
hé :
i b1C when| trangported Till’s body. account of the injuries to Till
’ are not consistent with the physical findings of the Medical Examiner. B
E 4. Sunday - August 28, 1955: -
B‘ SUN MOON
; Begin Civil Twilight | 5:06 am.. Moonrise on the 323 pm.
E Preceding Day )
i Sunrise 5:22 a.m, Moonset 1:00.a.m.
. Sunset 6:32 p.m. Moonrise 3:32 p.m.
i End Civil Twilight | 6:58 p.m. Moonset on the 1:56 a.m.
Following Day
- Weather
& High Temperature 91 degrees
i_ Low Temperaturs 73 degrees
Y . Precipitation .| None
‘ Meteorotogical, Light and Weather Data

iy

- r

.

{ I
B it

a. August 28, 1955 - 2:30 a.m, - Money, Mississippi: At approximately 2:30
a.m. Till was taken from Mose Wright's home on the Grover C. Frederick farm, Present in the home -

were Mosge Wright (deceased); his wife Elizabeth Wright {deceased); grandson Curtis Jones

i,

ok

be

P o (deceased); E son Maurice Wrigl{t (deceased);
L and 'great nephew Emmett Till. The drawing depicted below is based on deseriptions

LR

from “ ' and from Mose Wright’s testimony during the trial of Milam

L i s

and Bryant for THI’s murder, The person’s names are depicted in the rooms in which they were

sleeping when Till was taken from the home.

Misc ofs
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+ Mose Wright (deceased), also known as Preacher: anht tesuﬁed that at-about

2. 00 a.m., someone came to the front door of the home saying, "Preachcr -- Preacher”,
Wright asked who it was and the person responded, “This is Mr. Bryant. I'want to
talk to you and that boy.” Wright opened the door of the home and found J.W. Milam

"standing there at the door with a pistol in his right hand and he had 3 ﬂ'ashlight in his

left hand." Additionally, another man was "standing at the screen door, and Mr.

Bryant was standing kind of out away from the door." Milam asked Wright if he had |
3]

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE
This document containg neither recommendations nor conclusions of the EBE, 1 is the property of the FBI and is loansd to your agcncy, itandils
conleals are nod 1o be dishributed owrside YOUr agency.




LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

"two boys there from Chicago" and Wright responded "Yes, Sir." Milam then said "1
want that boy that done the talking down at Money." ’
Wright started to lead Milam and Bryant to the bedroom Till was S!eeping in

and Milam stated “If this is not the right boy, then we are going to bring him back and

- put him in the bed.” When they approached Till's bed, Milam "said for hun to get
up.” Tilt "got up and dressed. He sat on the side of the bed and dressed.™ After that
“...they started out, then he asked me if [ know anybody there and I told hirn, ‘No, Sir.
I don't know you.” And then he said to me, ‘How old are you?’ And then I said ‘Sixty
four.” And then he said, *Well, if you know any of us here tonight, thah you will |
never live to get to be Sixty five." . '

As Milam, Bryant and ;l‘iil were e:'dting the house they walked !through
Wright's bedroom, where his wife was present, “She had gotten up out of bed, and
then he said to her, ‘You get back in bed, and I mean, I want {o hear the springs.”"
Wright's wife "...said that we will fjay you whatcvé:f you want to charge if you will
just release him. She said that we would pay them for whatever he rmght have done

 if they would just let him go." Milam and Bryant did not respond 1o her.

After exiting the home, Wright stood at the screen porch door é[ld observed a
car to be "parked towards Money." Before Milam and Bryant entered::the car with
Till, "They aske.d if this wag the boy, and someone said “Yes'". Wher{ asked if the
voice was that of a man or a woman, Wright replied, "It seemed like if was a lighter
voice than a man's." Afer receiving the response from the person in the car, they

"...drove off towards Money.”

52
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Wright could not identify what type of automobile was used by Milam and
Bryant, The vehicle was operated without headlights. After the vehicle d_eparted,
Wright *...stood on the porch there for maybe twenty minutes or more.”

When as.ked {f anyone eise, with the exception of Milam and Bryant, was
thére at the time of Till's kidnaping, Wright responded “There was one man \.;fho
stood there at the screen door,” ”...he was standing kind of with hi:s head down like
this here peering, He was trying to hide, it looked like." "He acteél tike a colored
man,"” |

Wright stated he did not see Till, or anyone else, getting into a ¢ar and didn't
see anyone in the car when it drove off, Wright did not observe headli:ghts, tail lights
or interior lights on the car. Wright was asked abou; the voice he heard out by the car
being the voice of one of the three men. Wright responded, “It was jus:t a voice.

They took him out there, and somebody said, “Is this him?* and then a voice said,
“Yes." But it wasn't one of them.” Wright could not tell if the vehicle used to take
Till from his home was a truck or a car because of the darkness. |

Wright described Till as having "...stammering speech, Sometimes l;e couldn't
" geta word out.” Additionally, Till weighed ab'out one hundred fifty pounds and "He
looked like a man."

Wright testified that when Milam and Bryant came into his home there were
no lights on in the home anﬁ no lights were tumed on. The only lighting was the
flashlight carried by Milam, Wright believed Till was sleeping in his shorts and
maybe a shirt. When told to get up and put his clothes on, Tili put on & shirt, trousers

and shoes. Wright described in detail where each individual in the home was

53

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE

This document contains nelther secommendations nor conclusions of the FBI, [t is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its

contents are not to be distributed outside your agedcy.




Amom—

LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE
sleeping on the night Till was kidnaped and the structural layout of the home, Wright

* stated he did not see Tiil or anyone else getting into a car and didn't see anyone in the

car when it drove off,

Wright described that following Till being taken from his home he went, got

gasoline, "went 10 a store" and retiimed home about 8:00 am, #%

[ | The night Till was kidnaped, the entire Wright family went into
Greenwood, Mississippi. The family returned home and went to bed, Till
_and were asleep in the same bed when, “...I heard this noise ah...ruckus

going on in t};e room, that’s when [ woke up and [ saw ah...Bryant, [ récognized him,
1'saw Milam, but I didn’t know who he was, and he had the gun, and ah...it was
ah,..automatic, at the time I said it was a .43, which, that's the only automatie we
knew about.;’ “[ kind of raised up to see what was going on. . He (Milam) told me to

b6 lay back down and go back to sleep.” ., .that’s when they made Emmett get up and
b7C .

put his clothes on, and during that'time[j(élizabem Wright) — was

ah...begging them not to ~to ah...take him, they offered them money..,” *“Milam he

was, he was forceful and was telling Emmett to hurry up, put his clothes on,

(Mose Wright) was begging not to take him, then they said well we not gonna, we |

just gonna take him up the road and just whip him...” The two men took Till and left.

* Appendix A - Transcript — State of Mississippi vs. }.W, Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie Mise 0'/5
IlC‘, senth Judicial District, September 1955 - Testimony of My, Mose Wright, 4 to 62 .

“1 Saw Them Take Emmett Till -~ The tape-recorded story by Emmett Tili's Uncle Moses Wright, Fromn
Page Leteciive, October 25, 19385,
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"

]recalied a ring that Till had wom and had allowed to wear fora

while. After returned the ring, Till constantly wore it, never taking it off ¥ 88

. On the Saturday following the incident at Bryant's Grocery &

Meat Markét,[j: Till, Maurice Wright] ~ pnd others-went into

Greenwood, Mississippi. After returning home, everyone went to bed witl‘{:
and Maurice Wright sleeping in the same bed. woke to voices and someofie
was asking about "a fat boy from Chicago, and ah...] said oh my goodnes.vn » 5, the
first thing I said, I'm — I’m getting ready to die.” Two men came into his bedroom,

...when they stepped in there 1 saw that pistol and their flashlight...” “ .1 remember

them saying they looking for a fat boy, and at that time| [a-nd Eramett

was kind of chunky, so they passed on by and they went to the next room,..” “.. 1

could hear ‘em talking, and I can’t remember exactly what the conversation was, I -1
think [ remember one thing he wanted to put his socks and - ah,..he was saying yes;
and no, yeah, no, and they was cursing, they were very upset over that...”> After the .
men ook Till, there was silence in the house and “nobody talked to |

anyb ody.” £9,90, 51

uE _]! did not awaken during the incident and did not

hear or see any of the events that transpired. advised that Mose

Misc OfS
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Wright, related to him that Mose Wright may have heard Johnny B, Washington’s
voice at the Wright home the night Till was kidnaped. 2 '

¢ Curtis Jones (deceased): Jones, who was sleeping at the time of the abduction,
stated he “was awakened by a group of mens in the house.” “So I woke uﬁ, rubbing
my eyes, yo-u know, and I deen all these white guys, you know, standing .around, some
of *em had shotguns and stuff. Ang it like this should of scared me, btjt, I .went back
to sleep before thejr left, 1 ‘wcnt back_to sleep, and wﬂen I woke up the next, uh,

morning I thought it was a head, was a dream.” %

» Confidential Source| . I

b6
rle: ' I

members of his family and members of the

Wright household had been to Greenwood, Mississippi eatlier in the evening. On the

Misc QF3
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i

way home *,,. when we came back outta Greenwood there was another guy rode with

us lived down the road farther. We seen Mose Wright at this little store on the

place...” “...Getting’ gas that late at night. But we ain’ think ta stop an” ask Mose

what was wrong,” %

“O1d man Mose Wright come there to the house that Sunday

moming,..” “...and told us they got Emimett. An’ den me and Mose jump in the car

and went down to Money lookin’ for ‘em.] lfurther explained “...So 1 let

I Iout in[ Jhouse. Let and Maurice at Mose Wright house, let them off

an’ then tum around an’ corme on back. [ went an’ in the house an’ [ was sittin® on

the side of the bed...” ... An’ Mose Wright come up an’ said uh,lthhey took my

boy...” *...Then me an’ Mose Wright hop in the car an® we went up lht%re in Money

i | We went up there lookin’ for ‘im, so we didn’t see ‘em, turn around

an’ come back...” “,,. We didn’ get out, So we come on back...” Mose Wright told

Ithat Milam and Bryant were there when Till was taken and a ©...woman
was in the background...” and “For a fact there was two people back there he

said 53 97,98

stated Johnnie B.
Washington, was at home with her the ﬁight Till was kidnaped and murdered, ¥ %

b. August 28, 1955 - Early Morning - Money, Mississippi : : ;

recently stated that sometime in the

early morning hours, before daylight, someone who sounded like a black person came

Misc o/s !
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10 the residential entrance of the store (the back door) and knocked on the door.

stated she was scared because she was alone with her'two children

and did not answer the dooy, ‘% 101,102

Additionally, advised that she was at home in Money,

Mississippi witl'l_—_lwhen sometime during the night Roy Bryant, J.W.
Milam and Kimbrell appeared at the home/store with Emmett Till, ¢, 1 think they '

came back and I think that Kimbrell man was, was with, with ‘em...” « . 1think it

happened pretty much like he, like they said, I think they probably asked me who, if

[ believe. Because [ really think no matter

I though T 1 think he (Roy

Bryant) told me he was gonna take him back.” 0% 194 105,106

¢. August 28, 1955 - Early Moming - Clint Shurden Plantation, Drew,

advised that on the night which

Iater léarned was the night that Emmett Tiil had been kidnaped, J.W.

Milam and/or Roy Bryan! came to their house sometime after midnight. While

did not see the men, she heard one of the two talking t
and hear | Leslie Milam, tell the man something to the effect that "they

Misc 0/8
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needed to get away from here and take him back to where they got him."

:Ilater tealized they had been talking about Emmett Till. Leslie Milam came

backE:—_-Iafter J.W. Milam and/or Roy Bryant appeared at the house, '’

In a subsequent intervieWI:Irecalled the individuals Who[:

| lon this night as being both Roy Bryant and J.W. Milam.

also reiterated that Leslie Milaml

]|

Ialso stated,

“now what he did that day, [ don’t know...” ... After he left the house...” *...cause

he was gone » 108, 109

d. August 28, 1955 - Day Break - Money, Mississippi :

Sometime around daybrea.k,l

Jwent

home later,

down the street and utilized a telephone to call

in Minter City, Mississippi, to ascertain the whereabouts of Roy Bryant. Campbell

told: they had been playing poker all night and Réy Bryant-would be

1o, 11, 112

1o on this morning. Additionally,

recall if Melvin Campbell had been home or away from home the previous:night.

did not recall a telephone call from

Melvip Campbell,

could not

13
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e. August 28, 1955 - 6:00 am - Clint Shurden Plantation, Drew, Mississippi:
¢ Willie Reed: Reed, a witness in the 1955 prosecution, testified that on Sunday,
August 28, 1955, Reed saw J.W. Milam when Milam was coming to a weIL:at Leslie
Milam's farm. Reed is familiar with Leslie Milam’s farm because Reed lives with his
grandfather, Add Reed, on the Clmt Shurden Plantanon in & home just across the
bayou from Leslic Milam’s farm Sometime between six and seven ociock in the
mormning, Reed left his home to go to Glenn Patterson s store. When going from his
home to Patterson’s store, Reed had to pass by Leslie Milam's place, whére.tlhere was
a green barn with doors. As Reed was walking, a white over green, 1955 Chevrolet
truck passed him. Reed testified he saw four white men in the cab of the -truck, thre;:
black men on the sides of the back of the truck and a black boy sitting down in the
bed of the truck. Reed identified Till as the boy in the back of the truck ‘from a
photograph he saw in the newspaper and which he was sho‘;vn at trial, R;eed testified
he was unable to se¢ the three black men in the bed of the truck with Till well enough
to identify them. Reed then saw the truck parked in front of a bam. Reed heard
someone hollering and it sounded like someone was whipping someone in the barn.
After passing the barn, Reed went to Mandy Bradley's house and told 'hEI.‘ what he had
hea.rd. Reed then went to the well to get Bradley a bucket of water. While at the well,
Reed could h‘ear “some licks like somebody was whipping some;body” and ile could
hear someone hollering from inside the barn, J.W. Milam then came from the bam to
the well and got a drink of water. Reéd recalled J.W. Milam having a pistol on his
belt. After leaving the well, Reed went to the store. On his way home fr:mﬁ the store,

Reed did not hear or see anything and the truck was gone. Reed knows Leslie Milam
60
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and J.W. Milam. Reed had seen J.W, Milam on about three or four occasions prior to
August 28th. Reed had never seen Emmett Till prior to that Sunday. ‘When 'asked,
“...you don't know whether that was Emumett Till or not, do you?" Reed replied that

Till favored the picture he had just lookéd at. Reed had been in the barn on one

occasion, did not know who had control of the bam, but stated Leslie Milam lives

next to the barn, '

In contemporary interviews, Reed identified only two white men aund two

black men accompanying Till in the truck as it entered the farm. Reed identified the
‘white men as Milam and Bryant and the iwo black men as Levi “Too Tight” Collins
and Hubbard, S 115,17, U8 '

e Add Reed (deceased): Reed was sixty-five years old in 1955 and the grandfather

of Willie Reed. They lived together on the Clint Shurden Plantation. Reed's home

R e—— L]

was just across a bayou from Leslie Milam's home. On Sunday, August 28th, at
about 8:00 o'clock int the morning, Reed left his home, walking east, tumed Ij'lOﬂh,
crossed a bayou and crossed Leslie Mifam's place. Reed passed by a shed and an oat
bin on Leslie Milam's place and observed two men, Leslie Milam and ané_iher man
Reed did not know. Reed also observed a pickup truck to be parked at 2 building.
Willie Reed had leR home prior {0 Add Reed leaving the house and Witlie: Rieed had

not yet returned home when Add Reed departed.!

e Appendix A Transcnpt State of Missismppa ¥, 5 W M;tam and Roy Bryam Second District of Tallahatchie
. . . sw.0f M Reed, 21010 243

Misc ofs

YT e T Oy anr,serond District of Tallahatchie
Coumy, Seventeenth Judlc!aj Dssmct Sep;ember I955 Tesnmony oer Add Reed 245 10249
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" & Mary “Amanda” “Amanfly“ “Mandy" Bradley {(deceased); In 1935, Bradley
was fifty years old and lived on Leslie Milam's ptace. Leslie Milam'’s house v;'ould be
seen from Bradley's home. Bradley knew Willie Reed, who lives south of Leslie
Milam, on Clint Shurden's land. On Sunday, August 28”‘, between six-thirty and
seven o'clock am,, Willie Reed came to Bradley's house. Reed mentioned to‘Braclley
something unusual he had seen or heard that moming and Bradley lookefl out the
window. Bradiey saw four white men and 2 truck by the bamn, Bradley did not know

- who the four white men were. The men were coming in and out from the barn; one
man went 10 the well and got a drink of water then returned to the bam. The man
who got the drink of water was tall and bald headed. Bradley saw the trué;k when

they backed it up under the shed, the same shed they were going back and forth from

and Bradley saw the truck as it drove away. '

+ Confidential Sourc‘{ A confidential source, heteinafter refered to as

‘that Glenn Patterson {deceased) revealed to I:Ilhat the pickup track containing

Till's body passed by Patterson’s house as it left the Clint Shurden Plantation,

Patterson-also tevealed to that Patterson believed Till was shot while at Leslie

Mitam’s farm, '

| J’ Iadvised that on the day following Till’s kidnaping,

“I was, ah, playin’ beside the road and 1 saw Mr., ah, Mylam’s (sic) truck coming by

' appendix A - Transeript — State of Mississippi vs. LW, Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie

County, Seventeenth Judiclal Disteict, September 1955 - Testimony of Amandy Bradley, 230 o 258

Migce 0/S
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and it had a -- had a cover over the door we called a tarpaulan (sic), had a tarp over it,

. and T heard somebody hollerin’ on the truck, but [ didn’t see nobody.” 1z

In & later imerviewlzldescribed his home as being located n2ar

[__———___j west of Money on the way to[ 1 [also stated he b6
: B7C

saw Milam's truck pass him, with Milam and Branch [Bryant] inside, on either a

Tuesday or Wednesday and that it could not have been a Sunday. Ialso

stated the truck passed him about lunch time. ‘*
ugust 28, 1 - before ight — Glendora
l | In 1955 and her family fivedin a

home that was located near

Sometime in the middle of the rﬁghE—:land her sister

" . . . ' . b6
I::] were at home, sitting at a window, trying to get some air, when they noticed p7¢

a fire burning in a barvel behind J.W. Milam’s home. later learned that

someone had bumed something in the barrel, later saw shoes that had

burned in the fire and was told the shoes were Emmett Till's, 124 1%

| | recalled “I remember the shoe. Like at night my sister an’ |

1 ’ iy [TX1Y y b6
was in the bed an’ you know you had your windows up down south...” “An’ wesay 90

like maybe two or three guys, back then you would bring your garbage up a tall barrel

]

you,.." ... They put somethin’ in that an’ set it on fire.. later jearned it was

Till’s shoe which had been buned. ¢

nt
{23
124
125
12
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g. Augnst 28, 1955 -+ early moming — Glendora, Mississippi

" at the time, recalled many years later,

that he and is father, who is now deceased, walked past J.W. Milam’s store on a

Sunday moring. Upon passing the store, saw that Milam’s 1933 ~ 1955

GMC pickup truck was parked by the store, Aslzpassm between the store and
the truck, he noticed something under a tarpaulin, in the bed of the truck. A’black

man was sitting on the side of the bed of the truck with 2 foot on the tarpaulin.

Anotber black man was standing beside the truck. recalled the names of the

men as “0sgo” and “Too Tight” but could not recall which of the men wa's in the truck
and which was by the truck. Blood was ranning out of the bed of the truck and
pooling on the ground. :famer was present. About the time |:]reached
the truck, J.W, Milara came from the store, When Milam app-eared,Dfather
said samethir;g to Milam about the blood coming out of the truck. Milam stated he

had killed a deer. E:Ifather pointed out that deer season was not in arid Mijam

responded by pullin father over to the truck and lifting the tarpauiin to

show[ _____Ifather what was underneath| ____|was not able-to see what was

under the tarpaulin, but heard J, W, Milam state, “This is what happens to smart

niggers,” father then grabbed d dragged him to their house.

l lalso recalled many years later that he saw] |

coming toward the store from a nearby house,

84
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J.W. Milam was calling for  [to huwy. saw Milam and the others drive off

i the truck to the Glendora Cotton Gin and then leave town, '*+ 12

ﬁg who wasj |at the time, recalled walking
c _ . -

with four friends when they saw “Too Tight” and washing blood out of

J.W. Milam’s green 1950s Chevrolet truck. “Too Tight” offered to pay Iand

his t‘riendE% cents each to wash the blood out of the truck for him and they did

so{:Ibelieved this occurred one day during the week and not on a Sunday.

Hdescribed washing out the blood *...1 never seen lumps of blood look like

that,,.” *,..yeah, thick like jelly...” “...Somebody else asked him, Where did all that
blood come from? And he said we killed & deer last night...” “You know ah, the

blaood stain was still in the, the truck. And then ah, we washed and washed and we

v

couldn’t get it out...” ¥

bic .

{ | recailed, “...I was watering the flowers in the yard, and I

had to go to the, we used to call it the hydrant...but it was a faucet.,.” . .:'.I can see it P9

in my mind, [ see the truck over there, the green and white truck, and I can see J W,

and 1 can see Leroy Collins, but that’s where I stop' at. Ican’tsay it WD
:::Ii think, or as..,0s0 was o-vcr-thert-a, but it wasn't the t»\{o to my

knowledge.” | .

recalled! Robert Walker 8t., told her he had s;:en them
washing blood out of a truck at J.W. Milam’s store on this morning. When asked 11;(750 '

where the blood had come from, J,W. Milam stated he had gone huating,

Misc O/8
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also state:i:!told her...“When they were washing the blood, thiey moved this

canopy, We used to call it a tarpaulin,..” «...they moved it out the way and he saw

‘this shoe., #136 131

L stated he was waiting outside the “gambling place”

with some other men when a girl nameDapproached and told

them that J.W, Milam had taken a boy, killed him and dumped his body in the river.

E’wimesscd lpointing out to the group a shoe lying on the ground that,

according to “Too Tight" Collins, the boy [Till] had been wearing, '3

In a separate interview]

stated he had been gambling at a juke joint in

Glendora, Mississippi on the night of Till’s murder and had been called to hélp a

girlfriend with a flat tire. did so, purchasing Jinf J

PG
b7¢

~ Mississippi with Melvin Campbell’s assistance and then returning to 'G‘lendora,

Mississippi. Once back in Glendora, Mississippi a man named showed

Till’s shoes,'™

06 .
b7¢ During all known interviews o

Til’s kidnaping and murder.

and several other people a burned shoe, which said was one of Emmeit

e has denied any involvement in

+ Qudie Brown (deceased): Brown related that on the morning after Till was killed

he was walking and “Too Tight” [Collins} was washing J.W. Milam’s truck out. “...1

looked down and I said what ait that blood coming from. He laughed. The boy

laughed. That’s what he did. He said ihgare’s a shoe there. There’s oné of his shoes

" Misc 0/3
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here, [said Who? That’s the way [ said it, | say Who? Emmett Till’s shoe. Now
that’s the way he said it."” Brown also recalled being with J.W. Milam on the day
Milam was arrested by the “high sheriff” in Minter City; Mississippi.

b. August 28, 1955 + 2:00 pm, - Money, Mississippiz
* George Smith (deceased): Smith was Sheriff of Leflore County. On Sunday,
August 28, ]955; a.t approximately 2:00 p.m., Smith arrived at Bryarit’s Grqcery &
Meat Market in the town of Money, Mississippi. Upon his arrival, he found that the
Bryant’s store was closed and Bryant was asleep in the back of the store. Smtith
spoke with Roy Bryant, while seated inside Smith's car, outside Bryaat's store in
‘ Money, Mississipp;'. "l asked him why did he go down there and get }hat little nigger
boy, and he said that he went down and got him to let his wife see hiri to identify him,
and then-he said that she said it wasn't the right one, and then he said that he tumed
him foose” "in front of his store”.  Bryant told Smith, they got Emmétt Till at ."Mose
Wright's”. Bryant also told Smith "He said he went to some of his people - - Tdon't
remember just who he seid now - - and he said he played cards there the rest of the
night.” Smith arrested Bryant and took him to the jail in Greenwood, Mississippi,
where Bryant stayed “from that time on unti! he was brought to Tallahétéhie

County..." %%

Misc /8
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5. Monday - August 29, 1955

a. Greenwood, Mississippi:

o John Ed Cothran: Cothran was a Deputy Shexiff for the Leflore County Sheriff's
Depactment, Cothran testified that he spoke with J.W. Milam in the Leflore County
jail, after Milam was arrested, on a Monday. “I asked him if they went out there and
got that little boy and if they had done something with_hiﬁ. And he said that they had
brought him up there to that store and turhed him loose, there at Roy Bryaz;t‘s store."
Milam told Cothran they had got the boy at "Mose Wright's." Milam ft:irther told

Cothran "...they brought him up there and talked to him, and then they let him go e

stated “Well about all [ remember is that

ah, J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant went (o that old nigger house of Mose Wright, that
litie boy Emmett’s gfanddaddy. Well I talked to him on several different occasions
when [ was working that time, -They never did mention nobody but Milam and
Bryant,. .’:jecailed:jwhen Bryani and Milam were arrested,
stating “...the Sunday evemng me and him arrested Roy...” “...atthe siore in Money,
and that was a Sunday evening. The Monday mommg, me and the shenff was sitting
in the sherifi‘s office and I looked out at the window and I said iookey yonder George.
He said oh dog gone let’s go get him....” “... That’s Milam...” “..,be come down
around there to se¢ about his half brother, Well he got to see about hin{ caéus:: he

went right up there with him.""’

16 Appendix A - Transcript - State of Mississippi vs, J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tatlahatchie

Li1:]

County, Seventeenth Judicial District, September 1955 - Testimony of Mr. Jon Ed Cothran, 143, 144~ - g?‘c
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6. Wednesday - August 31, 1955:

a. August 31, 1935 ~ early moming ~ Pecay Point Area on the Tallahatchie

hili ississi

Robert Hodges: Hodges testif:{ed he was
fishing when he “...seen two knees aad feet,” about a mile f;on‘; his hmise, on the left
side, gomg down river, in Tallahatchie County. The body was hung up on a snag,
Hodges 1eported finding the body to his father, who reported it to their }ancl owner,
B.L. Mims, at about six thirty or seven o'clock in the moming. Later in the day,
Hodges, B.L. Mims, Deputy Sheriff Melton, Charlie Fred Mims and H{Jdges’ father
went to the location of the body in two boats. Then "they brought the fopia back there,
and then me and this other boy was in a boat, and Mr. Melton was there, and they had
.the rope around the boy's legs and then they huag it on thgre, and they had it on this
other boat, and then they carried it down the river and took it out on the. other side
there,” Upon pulling the body out onto the banl; they found a gin fan to be attached
tov the body with a ;;iece of barbed wire that was wrapped around the neck. Hodges
described the body as "beaten pretty bad in the back...and hips,"...ahd the head was
"also gashed in on the side." Hodges witnessed the barbed wire being disconnected
from the gin fan, the placement of the body arid gin fan n a boat and the boat

traveling to a landing. At the landin_g, fiodges observed Chester Miller, the
undertakér, arrive, place the body in a box, and pl_aCe; the box in the coa(;h; Hodges

observed a silver ring to be on one of the body's fingers, At trial Hodgé;i was shown a

ring which was engraved "May 25, 1943", with the engraved initials “L.T." and he
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advised the ting he was being shown looked like the ring he had seen, but he "didn't

get close enough to see-the initials,"'?

[ Jwas interviewed in 2004 and 2005 regarding his testimony in 1955

and the and acknowledged that the transcript of his testimony

; Y
“sounds accurate,” Iis cumently sl land has fished the Tallahatchie 7€

River all of his life. Additionally,[ ]recalled that he had |

~ |when he had been checkinglz:l' After

observing 1 fwent
home and told his father and their land owner that he had| [| Iled

several peopie,l traveling in one of two boats, to the body and they recovered it. The
body did not have any clothing on it and the main injuries to the body were to the
head.:marked on tlie aerial photograph depicied here the location where he

discovered Till's body on August 31, 1958, 139 140,141

”‘Appendix A- Transcnpt State of MISSISSIppI v. J w. Mnam and ROy Bryam Second District of Tallahatchie
A ‘ D |
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. was at home when a| . |
| hirived aDhome and advised him _that:lhad
been sent by | . to get ]____l

to assist in the recovery of a body that had been found in the Tallahaichie River.

. b6
| |and took a boat from the:farm and proceeded to.a bend inthe P7¢

river, where they found a body, caught on a snag of debris. They floated the body to
. a sandbar; placed it on a piece of visquine or other fabric, loaded it in the boat, and
- proceeded north on the river to Fish Lake Landing. Upon arriving at Fish Lake

Landinglz_-ldeparted almost immediately. a2 '

Gin Fan & Barbed Wire Recovered with Tiil's Body

Photograph from “Getting Away With Murder:
The True Stocy of the Emmett Titl Case™ by Chris Crowe

53
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b, August 31, 1 Fish Lake Landing. on the Tallahaichie River, north of

Philipp, Mississippi: ' .

¢ B.L. Mims (deceased): Testified that on August 31, 1955, Mims was told about a
body being found on the Tallahaichie River and he went down the river and found
*him". Accompanying Mims, in Mims' boat, was Deputy Sheriff Garland Melton.
Accompanying Mims and Melton, in a second boat, was his brother, Fred Mims, and
Robert Hodges. Mims observed, “Wel}, we saw a person - - from his knee on down
and including his feet - - we saw that sticking up abqve the water, And we ;:ould tell
by looking at it that it was a colored person..."‘ The body was bung up and they sent
one of the boats back to get a rope. Upon getting the rope, they pulle;l ‘ihe feet
together, tied the rope to the ankies and pulled the body foose from the hfbottom. They
then towed the body downstream to a shallow bank, landed there, and pulied the body
out. Mims observed a gin fan to be attached to the body at the neck with barbed wire.
A Deputy Sheriff disconnected the weight [gin fan} from the body, the}; pulled the
body out, and placed the body and the weight in an extra boat. The exira boat was
 attached to Mims' boat and Mims towed the boat with the body and the gin fanto a
landing. Upon arriving at the landing, the boat was pulled out of the wajer onto the

1

river bank, '*

» Note: During the course of the investigation it was determine

that the gin fan had been disposed of during the early 1970s.

1 Appendix A - Transcript - State of Mississippi vs. J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie
County, Seventeenth Judicial District, September 1935 - Testimony of B.L. Mims, 11010 115 '
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Ring Taken From the Body and Identified as THPs

Photograph from “Gelting Away With Murder:
The Teue Story of the Emmate Till Case” by Chris Crowe

:

o Chester A. Miller (deceased): Testified that Mitler was an undertaker in
Greenwood, Mississippi. Miller and his helper, Simon Garrett, were summoned 0
the Tallahatchie River, near Philipp, Mississippi, on August 31, 1955, to pick up a
body. Upon arriving at the scene, they found~ the b;)dy to be lying, face down, in a

boat. The boat was pulled up on the bank of the river. They turned the body over and

* discovered a silver ring on one of the body’s fingers. Miller identified a ring which

was inscribed "May 25, 1943" and with the initials "L.T.", as the ring that was taken
off of the body by his helper [Simon Garreti). Miller later gave the riné to Mose
Wright, Miile; obser_ved a metal wheel and a strand of barbed wite to ba in the boat
with the body and the barbed wire was wrapped around the neck of the i:»ody. Mose
Wright identified the body to Miller‘as being the body of Emmett Till. After loading
the body into a casket shipping container, Miller transported the body to~ his funeral
home in Greenwood, Mississippi. At the funeral home, Mr, Strickland, a Greenwood
‘74’
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Police Officer, took photographs of the body. Miller then prepared thz;, body for
burial in Money, Mississippi, and transported the body to a cemetery there. The body
was not buried and Miller carried the body back to his funeral home in Gfeeanod,
Mississippi. He Iater delivered the body to an undertaker in Tutwiler, Mis;sissippi.
Miller statec.i the body was not clothed when he observed it in the boat'.‘ Miller -
described the body as approximately five foot ‘four or five inches in he:ight,.weighing
approximately one hundred-fifty or one hundred-éixty pounds, “looked to be that of a
colored person” and "the ﬂesﬁ in the palm of the hand, well; it looked like it was the
body of a young petson. And from certain parts of the body -- wel}, in my experience
in handling those kinds of bodies, by certain parts of the body it looked like a yoﬁth
more 5o than a grown person or an older person,” Miller described what he saw of
the.body as "the who-le crown of his head, from here above (indicating with h.is hand)
was.just crushed in." Miller also said "The crown of his head was just crushéd out
and in, you know, and a piece of his skull just fell out there in the boat, maybe three
inches -long ofr maybe two and a E;naii: inche.s wide, something like that.". [ saw é hole
in the skull," further describing the hole as "Oh, about «-- maybe half an inch square,
sompthing like that", located about theee- quarters of an inch above the :iéllt gar. The
other side of the head was "crushed on the other side. You couldn't telk too much it
was crushed so. And it was all cut up and gashed across the top there." Miller said
the wounds he described were sufﬁcient_tq cause death, but could not t«_all ifthe

wounds were caused before or after death or “in a car aceident or otherwige.,.* '**

"% Appendix A - Transeript - State of Mississippi vs. J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie
- County, Seventeenth Judicia) District, September 1955 - Testimony of Chester Miller, 64 to 80 and 94 to 99
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» John Ed Cothran: Testified that on August 31, 1955, at about 10:00 a.m. he and
Mr, Weber, a Leflore County Deputy Sheriff, traveled to a place on the Tallahatchie
River, between Philipp and Macel, Mississippl, stopping en route at Mése Wright's
horme to pick him up. Upon arriving, they found a body had been takeﬁ out of the
river and was in a boat on thei river bank, Sheriff Strider, Sheriff Smith, and other
people were present. Chester Miller, the Neg‘ro undertaker, arrived a short time later.
Cothran wiinessed the teansfer of the body from the boat inte a casket dnde_u: the
supervision of Chester Miller. Cothran also witnessed Simon Garrett, Miller’s helper,
remove a sitver ring from a finger on the body, Garrett gave the ring to,Mose Wright,
who cartied it home, and who, in tumn, gave it to Cothran. Cothran identified the ring
as being inscribed "May 25, 1943" with the inscribed initials “L.T." Co‘ihran .
identified a metal gin fan which had been in the boat with the body and a piece of
barbed wire that had been atached to the body, Cothran described the cbnditiou of
the bddy as "his head was torn up ptett).r bad. And ﬁis left eye was about out, it was
all gouged out in there, you know. And right up in the top of his head, weli, there
was a hole knocked in the front of it there. And then right over his righ{ear --well, 1
wouldn't say it was a bullet hole..." Cothran further stated there was a small hole in
the head about an inch above the ear and he could not tell if the hole penetrated tl{e

* skuit, Also the head had “a place knocked in on his forehead.” Other parts of the
body did not appear 10 be mutilated, Afier arriving at the river, as they walked up to

the boat, Mose Wright said "I believe that's him". Cothran also heard Mose Wright

16
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state "he didn't know about the ring at the time, but he said he would carry it outto

his house and ask his boy about it, that he would know." '**

Etated he was at the river wﬁe‘n Till's

body was found, saying “Well they, they had him in a boat, they already pulled the )
boat up 1o the bank when I got up there.” He described the injuries to the body as
“Oh it was in, it was in pretty bad shape. Now I don’t know ah, it’s been so long, I

tell ya how it’s just. I can’t remember. 1 know it was just the stinkinist thing I ever
]

saw,”

;:recalled the ting recovered from the body statirig, “The last time
saw it a district attorney up at Sumner had it. Now they took the ring';off of that boy’s
finger and Sheniff Strider an gave it to me, Well I gave it to the district attomey”. ..
“when that trial started they had all of us in the room, all the witnesses, The district
attorney brought that ring and then showed it to Emmett’s mother. As;kegi her if she
gver remembers seeing‘t‘hat ring, She said no sir, I, I hadn’t, I hadn’t ever seen it.
About thirty minutes later, they put her on the witness stand and she ‘sgvo‘re she saw

that ring on litfle Emmett’s finger when he boarded the bus in Chicago.” '*®

} who did not testify at trial in 1955, worked for the

[located in Greenwood, Mississippi in 1955.

assisled[:]in the recovery of Tiil's body along the :'Tallahatchie
River and the processing of the body at the | ' ' ]

Deca[led and many other people being at the site where the -

142 Appendix A - Transeript « State of Mississippi vs. J.W. Milam and Roy Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie
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body was brought to theé shore. The body was lying on the river bank Wiﬂl_-a gin fan

pulley tied around its neck with barbed w}re. recalled untangling the wire

from the body; injuries to the head of the body, J

[:Iand carrying the body to the funeral horne in Greenwood, Mississippi. |

could not recall the body having a ring on any of its

fingers. "7

+ Mose Wright (deceased): Testified that following Till's kldnapmg on August 28
1935, the next time Wright observed Tlll was the following Wednesday when "..he
was taken out of the river, He was ina boat then "...and..."He was dea:_i.” A Deputy
Sheriff from Greenwood, Mississippi notified Wright to come to the ri';fer. Present at
the river was Sheriff Strider, Depﬁly Garland Melton and a lot of other:white 'peop[e.'
Wright observed the underiaker, Chester Miller, take a ring off of Till's finger'and
place it on the éeat of the funeral coach. Miller then gave the ring to ‘-V_'ﬁgl.n and
Wright later gave the ring to a Leflore County Sheriff's Deputy. When'asked about
the ring taken from Till's ﬁngei, Wright stated he had never seen the rir;'g befm:e, but

had been told by Simeon and Robert [Wright's sons] the ring was Till’s, 1454

u recalled “What hapi:ened was, the sheriff brought the

ring out 10 our-house and showed it to dad, which [ was standin’ there wzth h:m, said

this is the ring that we. found on the body. And that s when | uh blurted out, said

14
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""" Appendix A - Transcript — State of MIssissippi vs. J,W. Milam and Roy Bryant, Second Disirict of Tailahatchie

C centh Judicial District, September 1955 « Testimony of Mose Wright, 4 to 64
He - “[ Saw Them Take Emmett Till - The tape-tecorded story by Emmeit Till’ Uncle Moses Wright,"

Front Page Detective, Octgber 23, 1955.!
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that’s Emmett’s, that’s Bobo’s ning.” had seen Till wearing the ring during

Till’s visit to Mississippi. **°

vas at home when Mose Wright told him that they had

b6 - found a body and Mose Wright wanted to go and identify it. carried Mose
b7C ' '

Wright to where the body was, watched as Mose Wright pulled a ring from Till’s

finger and then heard Mose Wriéht state the body was Till. Additionally, Mose

Wright tol Fhat Till's 15t

v Note: During the course of the mvesﬂgauon the rmg was not

discovered and there is no reason to expect that it will be found.
d. August31, 1955, 3:00 p.m,. Greenwood, Mississippi;
¢ C.A. Strickland (believed deceased): Strickland was an Identification Officer,

Collision Department, Greenwood Police Department. At approximately 3:00 p.m.

on August 31, 1955 Strickland was called upon o take photographs of af’dead body at
| the Century Burial Funeral Home in Greenwood, Mississippi. At trial, Strickland
t 'identiﬁed a photograph he had taken of the body. The photographs were not located
during the course of the investigation. '*
¢ C.F, (Chick} Nelson (deceased): ‘Testified that Nelson was the manager and
operator of 2 funeral home in Tutwiler, Mississippi. Nelson was,requestéd to pick up

the body of Emmett Till during the last part of August and Nelson sent someone to

pick up the body at Century Funeral Home. The body was then brought to Neison's

beé
b7¢

" Appendix A - Transcript - State of Mississippi vs. LW, Milam and Rey Bryant, Second District of Tallahatchie
County, Seventeenth Judicial Distrivt, September 1955 - Testimony of C.A. Suickland, §0 10 85
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funeral home where the body was prepared for shipping to Chicago andﬁsubséquently

shipped to A, A. Rainer and Sons Funeral Home in Chicago.'™

bé

b7C Afier Roy Bryant’s mcst,s was taken

in by family members. “I was at Buddy Milam’s store...” ...and Raymond [Roy

Bryant’s twin brother] came in. Tdon’t know if Raymond was by himself of not. [
think that was the day the body was found, and I think that he told 'n.w that and, and
uh, I don’t know what I said to him, that Roy, Roy said he didn’t do anything to him
or something and anyway, Raymond said Roy didn’t. It was Melvin. Well eh went, I
said well why would, why would they .arrest Roy therll'? Aﬁd he said I waé not to tell

anybody it was Melvin and 1 said well I will..,» ¥

*? Appendix A - Transeript « State of Mississippi vs. LW, Milam and Roy Rryant, Second District of Tallahaichie

County, Seventeenth Judicial District, September 1953 - Testimony of C.F. (Chick) Neison, 177 to 180
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